
Risk and Insurance for Housing Providers

Proposal form




Important notice:

This is a proposal for a contract of insurance, in which ‘proposer’ or ‘you / your’ means the housing association proposing for cover.

This proposal must be completed in ink, signed and dated. All questions must be answered to enable a quotation to be given but completion does not bind you or Underwriters to enter into any contract of insurance. If space is insufficient to answer any question fully, please attach a signed continuation sheet. You should retain a copy of the completed proposal (and of any other supporting information) for future reference.

You are recommended to request a specimen copy of the proposed policy or certificate from your insurance broker and to consider carefully the terms, conditions, limitations and exclusions applicable to the cover. The proposed insurance covers only those losses which arise from certain events discovered or claims made against the Assured during the period of insurance, as specified in the policy or certificate.
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PART A – GENERAL INFORMATION 
(If there is insufficient space to answer a question please continue in the ‘Additional Information’ at the end of this proposal form).


1. Proposer
	Name
	United Welsh Housing Association




	Address of registered or principal office
	Y Borth
13 Beddau Way
Caerphilly




	Postcode
	CF83 2AQ



	Telephone number
	03301596080




	Website address
	www.unitedwelsh.com





	Please list all subsidiary companies for whom cover is required.

	
	Celtic Horizons Ltd
Harmoni Homes Ltd

	
	

	
	

	
	



2. Income
	(i)
	What is your total gross income for the last financial year

	£53,483,000



	(ii)
	What is your total income/expenditure in respect of care* 
	£1,174,000 (operating surplus on supported housing

	
	*services involving children or vulnerable* adults e.g refuges, domiciliary care, assistance with personal care needs, assistance with health and medical care needs
	

	
	*A vulnerable adult is an adult who is aged 18 years or over and who is or may be in need of community care services by reason of mental or other disability, age or illness and who is or maybe unable to take care of him or herself against significant harm or exploitation
	



	(iii)
		What is your income from fee generating activities to third parties *
	£2,021,000



	
	








	
	* if income is derived from 'fee-generating activities’ (or where a fee would normally be charged) please provide full details.
	

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	



	(iv)
	Can you confirm that there have been no significant fluctuations in your income (e.g plus/minus 25%) or change in your activities over the last 3 financial years and none are anticipated in the forthcoming year?
	[bookmark: Check90][bookmark: Check91]Yes   |X|     No* |_|

	
	* If 'No' please provide full details:

	
	

	
	


3. Aims and Activities
	(i)
	Please describe your aims and activities and those of your subsidiaries

	
	No changes

	
	

	
	

	
	




	(ii)
	Do you currently or do you intend in the future to undertake any design and construct work other than care and repair activities e.g. acting as a main contractor?
	[bookmark: Check92][bookmark: Check93]Yes |X|    No*   |_|





	(iii)
	Can you confirm
(a) all construction projects are constructed to established techniques Yes
(b) you have never failed to complete a construction project Yes

If ‘no’ please provide details

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	(iv)
	Do you currently or do you intend in the future to provide any of the following –
A – domiciliary care (including the provision of meals)
B – assistance with personal care needs
C – assistance with health and medical care needs
D – administer any medical procedures
E - crèche
	[bookmark: Check98][bookmark: Check99]Yes* |_|    No   |X|



	
	
	

	
	 If ‘yes’ please provide full details
	




	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	





	(v)
	If you are likely to hold your employees personally responsible for professional work undertaken on your behalf do you wish underwriters to consider providing cover
	Yes* |X|    No   |_|

	
	 If ‘yes’ please answer the following question
	

	
	Provide a percentage breakdown of such work between the following
	

	
	(a)
	Architectural design
	

	
	(b)
	Project management
	40

	
	(c)
	Project co-ordination
	20

	
	(d)
	Building surveying
	

	
	(e)
	Clerk of works
	40

	
	(f)
	Quantity surveying
	

	
	(g)
	Planning and building appeals
	

	
	(h)
	Planning supervisor
	

	
	(i)
	Other work
	

	
	 If ‘yes’ please provide full details of activities including total contract values involved.

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	



4. Construction of housing 

	Do any multi-tenanted buildings have external cladding, or similar?
	Yes   |X|*    No |_|

	(i)
	* if ‘Yes’ please provide full details of the action taken following the Grenfell Tower tragedy 
	

	
	See below

	
	

	
	

	
	






	(ii)(a)
	Following the Grenfell Tower tragedy has fire safety and fire prevention been reviewed in each multiple tenanted building by an independent fire safety specialist third party.
	Yes |X|    No   |_|*

	
	* if ‘No’ please provide details 
	

	
	All properties are subject to a periodic fire risk assessment

	
	

	
	

	
	

	            Following the review have all requirements and recommendations been implemented?
	Yes   |X|    No |_|*

	(ii)(b)
	* if ‘No’ please provide full details of why this action hasn’t been taken
	

	
	Any recommendations arising on each FRA are actioned within appropriate timescales

	
	

	
	

	
	






	(ii)(c)
	If you have undertaken an internal review, has this or will this be spot checked by an independent third party such as the fire service?
	Yes |_|    No   |X|*

	
	* if ‘’No’ please provide details as to why not
	

	
	Individual FRAs are not reviewed by the fire and rescue service, however we consult with them regularly on our general approach to fire safety

	
	

	
	

	
	









5. Mergers and acquisitions 
	
	

	(i)
	During the last three years have you
	

	
	(a)
	merged with or been taken over by any other entity?
	

	
	(b)
	acquired or disposed of any entities?
	

	(ii)
	Are there any plans presently under consideration for the merger with or take over by another company or the acquisition or disposal of any of your operations?
	[bookmark: Check102][bookmark: Check103]Yes*   |_|    No |X|

	
	* If ‘Yes’ please provide full details.

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	






	(iii)
	Do you undertake any joint ventures?
	[bookmark: Check108][bookmark: Check109]Yes |_|*    No   |X|

	
	* if ‘Yes’ please provide details 
	

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	



6. Financial status
	(i)
	In respect of the organisation and its subsidiaries can you confirm that

	
	(a)
	none are the subject of an administration order or an application for an administration order?
	

	
	(b)
	they are all able to pay their debts as they fall due?
	

	
	(c)
	they have not changed their auditors within the last two years? (other than through the normal tender process)
	[bookmark: Check110][bookmark: Check111]Yes |X|    No*   |_|

	
	* if ‘No’ please provide full details:
	

	
	     

	
	

	






	




	(ii)
	Can you confirm that your funds are managed by suitably qualified external professional managers, or similarly qualified internal staff
	[bookmark: Check112][bookmark: Check113]Yes |X|    No*   |_|

	
	* If 'No' Please provide full details of who manages the organisation's funds, the length of time they have undertaken such duties and their experience in fulfilling this function
	

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	 If Yes please answer the following questions
	

	
	
	Can you confirm that, other than through the normal tender process,
	

	
	
	(a)
	there has been no change in the external professional managers used by the organisation within the last three years
	

	
	
	(b)
	the organisation and/or its trustees/directors maintain full legal rights against such external professional managers?
	[bookmark: Check114][bookmark: Check115]Yes |X|    No*   |_|

	
	
	If 'No' please provide full details 
	

	
	
	     

	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	



7. Sub-consultants
	Where you provide services to third parties do you subcontract any of this work?
	[bookmark: Check124][bookmark: Check125]Yes* |_|    No   |X|

	* If 'Yes' please provide full details of the services provided and checks you make to ensure they are adequately insured:
Please note underwriters retain rights of recourse against third party service providers unless specifically agreed otherwise.  Our policy requires third parties to carry their own insurance to specified indemnity limits

	     




PART B – YOUR COVER REQUIREMENTS

Please answer the following questions (8, 9 and 10) if care activities are provided by you or on your behalf

8. Training
	(i)
	what training is provided to your staff and/or volunteers
	

	
	(a)
	in health and safety procedures?

	
	(b)
	in the implementation of your policy and procedures? (Including any manual handling training where appropriate)

	
	
	Staff receive mandatory training in the following areas: safeguarding; general health and safety; fire safety / fire marshal; first aid (level dependant on role); manual handling; slips tips and falls and lone working. Our polices and procedures are easily accessible via our intranet and we have a Health and safety partner who supports the organisation and staff to ensure they are adhering to safe working practices. Role risk assessments are completed to help ensure any additional measures to protect staff are implemented. 											







	
	
	

	
	
	

	
	
	

	(ii)
	how frequently is such training provided (e.g. induction training for new staff, ongoing and ‘refresher’ training for existing staff)?

	
	A thorough corporate induction is completed which includes all relevant health and safety modules. Refresher training is then provided as required e.g. first aid every 3 years, breakaway annually

	
	

	
	

	
	




9. Document retention policy

	Please confirm that you securely retain the following records and have contingency arrangements in place for long-term secure retention should you cease to operate/trade:

	(i)
	employment/engagement application forms, declarations, references and identity verification for all your personnel and volunteers
	[bookmark: Check126][bookmark: Check127]Yes |X|    No*   |_|




	(ii)
	training records relating to staff and volunteers
	[bookmark: Check128][bookmark: Check129]Yes |X|    No*   |_|



	(iii)
	accident/incident registers
	[bookmark: Check130][bookmark: Check132]Yes |X|    No*   |_|




	(iv)
	records of your historical liability insurance policies
	[bookmark: Check131][bookmark: Check133]Yes |X|    No*   |_|

	* if 'No' please provide full details:
	

	     



10. Legislation and guidelines

	Do you comply with all legislation and guidelines applicable to any of your activities which relate to the protection of children/young people and vulnerable adults, including

	(i)
	The 13 guidelines contained in the Home Office Code of Practice ‘Safe from Harm’




	(ii)
	The National Minimum Standards and Regulations of the Care Standards Act 2001 (or Scottish or Northern Ireland equivalent)



	(iii)
	The use of personnel enquiry procedures including DBS (or Scottish or Northern Ireland equivalent)




	
	
	Yes |X|    No*   |_|

	* if 'No' please provide full details:
	

	     



PART C – YOUR COVER REQUIREMENTS

11. Insuring Clauses

	(i)
	Is cover required for Professional liability
	Yes* |X|    No   |_|

	
	* If ‘Yes’ what limit is required?
	£

	(ii)
	Is cover required for Executive liability
	Yes* |_|    No   |X|

	
	* If ‘Yes’ what limit is required?
	£






	(iii)
	Is cover required for Entity Defence
	[bookmark: Check135][bookmark: Check134]Yes* |_|    No   |X|

	
	* If ‘Yes’ what limit is required?
	

	
	£  100,000      
	[bookmark: Check136]|_|



	
	£  250,000      
	[bookmark: Check137]|_|



	
	£  500,000      
	[bookmark: Check138]|_|



	
	£1,000,000     
	[bookmark: Check139]|_|

	(iv)
	Is cover required for Employment Practices Liability
	Yes* |X|    No   |X|

	
	* If 'Yes' please answer question 11
	

	
	*If ‘yes’ what limit is required
	£

	(v)
	Is cover required for Commercial Crime
	[bookmark: Check147]Yes* |_|    No   |X|

	
	* If 'Yes' please answer question 12

	
	*If ‘Yes’ what limit is required                                                                                        
	£

	(vi)
	Is cover required for Cyber and Data Risks
	Yes* |_|    No   |X|

	
	* If 'Yes' please answer question 13
	

	
	*If ‘yes’ what limit is required
	£



12. Employment law protection (not available in Northern Ireland)
Only answer this question if Employment Law Protection cover required
	(i)
	Are all employees domiciled in and work in England, Scotland or Wales?
	[bookmark: Check158][bookmark: Check159]Yes   |_|    No* |_|



	
	* if ‘No’ please provide full details:

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	



	(ii)
	
	

	
	(a)
	Do you anticipate any major changes in the number of employees employed?
	

	
	(b)
	Does your total number of employees employed in each of the last three financial years and the estimated number of employees in the current financial year fluctuate from one successive year to another by more than ± 20%?
	

	
	(c)
	Do you envisage any redundancies or early retirement within your business in the next twelve months? Yes
	

	
	(d)
	Are there any plans to revise any existing employee benefits during the next twelve months (e.g. pensions etc)?
	[bookmark: Check160][bookmark: Check161]Yes*   |X|    No |_|

	
	* if ‘Yes’ please provide full details:


	
	We have elected to not submit tenders for two grant funded services (Cardiff Floating Support and Acorn Project). Nothing is confirmed at this point but redundancies or early retirement cannot be ruled out at this stage.

We are also changing the way our maintenance service is delivered. The change won’t come into force until 2028 but there may staff changes in advance of this.

The company health scheme is due for reviews in June/July 2026.









	
	

	
	

	
	



	(iii)
	within the last twenty four months how many employees have
	     



	
	(a)
	taken early retirement?
	1



	
	(b)
	resigned?
	27



	
	(c)
	had their employment terminated (with or without cause)?
	52



	(iv)
	If your total number of employees exceeds 100 please answer the following question
	

	
	Can you confirm that you have your own human resource (HR) department staffed by qualified employment solicitors or employees qualified to Certificate in Personnel Practice level or higher (as issued by the Chartered Institute of Personnel and Development), or that you use external consultants qualified to a comparable standard?
	[bookmark: Check162][bookmark: Check163]Yes   |X|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘No’ please explain why not:.



	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	

	(v)
	Can you confirm that
	

	
	(a)
	a contract of employment is issued to all employees?
	

	
	(b)
	written instructions and procedures are issued to all staff in the proper implementation of personnel policies and procedures including disciplinary, grievance and equal opportunities policies?
	

	
	(c)
	training is provided to all staff regarding the correct implementation of such policies and procedures and such training is fully recorded?
	

	
	(d)
	all grievance procedures and/or disciplinary hearings are fully minuted?
	

	
	(e)
	such contract, instructions, and procedures were drafted in accordance with the latest ACAS guidelines/recommendations and relevant anti-discrimination codes of practice and that these are regularly updated and reviewed?
	[bookmark: Check164][bookmark: Check165]Yes   |X|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘No’ please explain why not:

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	




	(vi)
	Please provide details of solicitors or any other employment law specialists/consultants used by you in the drafting of the standard contract(s) of employment and generally in connection with employment matters

	
	Geldards Solicitors, Cardiff

	
	

	
	

	
	



	
	Can you confirm that you have not, in the last five years
	

	
	(a)
	had any employees who have
	

	
	
	· made, or have had made against them, allegations of bullying and/or harassment (whether sexual, racial or otherwise)?

	
	
	· been absent for work related reasons, including alleged stress?
	

	
	(b)
	become involved in a dispute with another party which has or could have resulted in an employment tribunal (or similar) or legal proceedings?
	[bookmark: Check170][bookmark: Check171]Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘No’ please provide full details (including, in respect of any employment tribunals, full details of the allegations, the outcome and any settlement or compensation payments) :



	
	a)
· 1 employee had allegations made against them (matter resolved internally)
· We have had employees absent for work related reasons

b) 1 employee put in an ET1 just under 5 years ago but it never went near tribunal.

	
	

	
	

	
	



	(vii)
	Have you any plans to tender for contracts, change contracts or make any changes to the business that may involve TUPE * Regulations?
	[bookmark: Check172][bookmark: Check173]Yes* |X|    No   |_|

	
	N.B.
	1
	TUPE (Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) Regulations 2006) can apply in a diverse range of circumstances, not just when businesses change hands and apply equally to the commercial and voluntary sectors.  If you have any doubts as to whether or not TUPE applies you are recommended to answer ‘Yes’ to this question and provide full details below.

	
	
	2
	It is a condition of the policy that you must use the Markel employment helpline whenever TUPE issues could arise




	
	* If ‘Yes’ please provide full details:
	

	
	See 12.ii above

	
	

	
	

	
	




13. Commercial Crime
Only answer this question if Crime cover is required
	(i)
	what indemnity limit is required?
	£     

	(ii)
	What is your total number of employees
	     




	(iii)
	can you confirm that any consultants, contract personnel, temporary staff or volunteers are supervised and controlled by you in the same way as your own employees?
	[bookmark: Check174][bookmark: Check175]Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘’No’ please provide full details:
	

	
	     










	
	

	
	

	
	

	(iv)
	Can you confirm that
	

	
	(a)
	A monthly audited procedure is in place to ensure all requests to alter bank, payment or supply details are independently verified prior to actioning with a known client contact
	

	
	(b)
	you do not use pre-signed cheques
	

	
	(c)
	physical stock (if you have stock) and inventory checks are carried out at least annually by persons other than those responsible for stock
	

	
	(d)
	in respect of all persons applying for employment or volunteering
· as a computer analyst, programmer or operator, or
· who will be involved in the handling of money, or
· who will have responsibility for money, books or accounts or goods
you obtain written or verbal references to cover a minimum period of two years immediately preceding their employment or volunteering

	
	(e)
	professional external auditors audit your accounts at least once a year within six months of the financial year end, and all recommendations are acted upon

	
	(f)
	the payment for goods and services are authorised by an employee/volunteer not responsible for ordering or certifying receipt of such goods or services
	[bookmark: Check176][bookmark: Check177]Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘No’ please provide full details:

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	

	(v)
	Are the duties of each employee arranged so that no individual can:
	

	
	(a)
	sign cheques or authorise payments above £2,500
	

	
	(b)
	issue fund transfer instructions
	

	
	(c)
	open new accounts
	

	
	(d)
	amend fund transfer procedures
	

	
	(e)
	make investments in shares, other security or valuables
	



	
	(f)
	control any transaction from start to finish
	[bookmark: Check178][bookmark: Check179]Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	* If ‘No’ please provide full details:
	

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	

	
	
	

	(vi)
	Do you or your employees have access to or control of monies belonging to residents, service users, leaseholders or tenants 
	Yes*   |_|    No |_|

	
	* If ‘Yes’ please provide full details of your risk management procedures in respect of these monies:
	

	
	     

	
	

	
	

	
	



14. Cyber and Data Risks
Only answer this question if Cyber and Data Risks cover is required
	(i)
	(a)
	Do you hold or process greater than 50,000 personally identifiable information records?
	

	
	(b)
	Do you hold or process greater than 5,000 patient/healthcare records
	

	
	(c)
	Do you process payments via your website totalling more than £100,000 per annum?
	Yes*   |_|    No |_|

	
	
	*If ‘yes’ please complete our full cyber and data risks proposal form
	

	(ii)
	
	Do you undertake the following on all computers
	

	
	
	
	

	
	(a)
	you use and update anti-virus, anti-spyware and firewall protections at least monthly
	

	
	(b)
	you regularly perform software updates as they are released by vendors
	

	
	(c)
	you undertake a backup of data at least monthly
	

	
	(d)
	you perform background checks on all contractors or employees with access to critical IT infrastructure
	Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	
	*If ‘no’ please complete our full cyber and data risks proposal form
	




	(iii)
	In respect of confidential or sensitive data, do you have processes in place to ensure
	

	
	(a)
	all confidential/sensitive data is encrypted when stored on portable devices or in transmission
	

	
	(b)
	unauthorised access is prevented
	

	
	(c)
	such data is destroyed securely

	 Yes   |_|    No* |_|

	
	
	
*If ‘no’ please complete our full cyber and data risks proposal form
	

	(iv)
	Do you operate any websites which incorporate e-commerce, process payments or collect confidential or sensitive data?
	 Yes*   |_|    No |_|

	
	
	
*If ‘yes’ please complete our full cyber and data risks proposal form
	

	
	
	
	




PART D – DECLARATIONS 
To be answered by all proposers

15. Claims and circumstances
	Can you confirm that 
	

	(i)
	neither you, nor any governor, director, council member, officer, trustee, manager or partner of the housing association or any person insured or proposing for insurance has

	
	(a)
	been convicted, or charged but not yet tried, of any criminal offence other than a motoring offence? 
	

	
	(b)
	been declared bankrupt, gone into insolvent liquidation, or been the subject of receivership or an administrative order?
	

	(ii)
	the housing association has never had an application for this type of insurance declined by any insurer, had a renewal of such insurance declined, nor had similar insurance cancelled or made subject to special conditions?

	(iii)
	neither the housing association nor any person insured or proposing for insurance is aware AFTER ENQUIRY, of any circumstance or incident which they have reason to suppose might afford grounds for any future claim that would fall within the scope of the expiring insurance or the proposed insurance?
	[bookmark: Check186][bookmark: Check187]Yes   |X|    No* |_|

	* If ‘No’ please provide full details:

	     



Important information concerning your personal information
Please carefully read the following before you sign and date the declaration.
Your insurance cover includes cover for individuals who are either insureds or beneficiaries under the policy (individual insureds). We collect and use relevant information about individual insureds to provide you with your insurance cover and to meet our legal obligations.
This information includes individual insureds' details such as their name and address [and may include more sensitive details such as information about their health and criminal convictions].
We will process individual insureds' details, as well as any other personal information you provide to us in respect of your insurance cover, in accordance with our full Markel privacy notice, a copy of which is available online at http://www.markelinternational.com/foot/privacy-policy/ or on request.
Information notices
To enable us to use individual insureds' details in accordance with current data protection laws, we need you to provide those individuals with certain information about how we will use their details in connection with your insurance cover.
You agree to provide to each individual insured this short form information notice on or before the date that the individual becomes an individual insured under your insurance cover or, if earlier, the date that you first provide information about the individual to us.
Minimisation and notification
We are committed to using only the personal information we need to provide you with your insurance cover. To help us achieve this, you should only provide to us information about individual insureds that we ask for from time to time. 
You must promptly notify us if an individual insured contacts you about how we use their personal details in relation to your insurance cover so that we can deal with their queries.
Important information concerning your duty to make a fair presentation of risk
Please carefully read the following before you sign and date the declaration.
Before the insurance policy takes effect you have a duty to make a fair presentation of the risks to be insured.
A fair presentation of the risk is one
· which discloses to us every material circumstance which you know of or ought to know of, or
· gives us sufficient information to put us on notice that we will need to make further enquiries for the purpose of revealing those material circumstances, and
· which makes that disclosure in a manner which is reasonably clear and accessible to us, and
· in which every material representation as to a matter of fact is substantially correct and every material representation as to a matter of expectation or belief is made in good faith.
A material circumstance is one that would influence our decision as to whether or not to agree to insure you and, if so, the terms of that insurance.  If you are in any doubt as to whether a circumstance is material you should disclose it to us. 
Failure to make a fair presentation of risk could prejudice, reduce or modify your rights under the policy.


17. Declaration
	
I declare that 
· I am authorised to complete this proposal on behalf of the Proposer 
· every statement and particular within this proposal form
· which is a statement of fact, is substantially correct, and
· which is a matter of expectation or belief, is made in good faith
If any such facts, expectations and/or beliefs materially change before the insurance policy takes effect I will undertake to provide details of all such changes to you in order to comply with my obligation to provide a fair presentation of the risk to be insured under the insurance policy.


	Signed*:
	     



	Name:
	     



	Capacity*:
	     



	Date:
	     



	* the signatory should be a director or senior officer of, or partner in, the proposer.




NOTICE TO THE PROPOSER

The underwriters
Markel (UK) Limited underwrites business on behalf of Markel International Insurance Company Limited.

THE LAW OF THE INSURANCE CONTRACT
The parties to this proposed insurance are free to choose the law applicable to the insurance contract. Unless you specifically agree otherwise with Underwriters, your proposed contract will be governed by English law.














































Markel (UK) Limited
Verity House, 6 Canal Wharf, Leeds, LS11 5AS.  Tel: +44 (0)845 351 2600 Fax: +44 (0)845 351 2601
www.markelinternational.com/uk

Offices at Birmingham, Bristol, Leeds and Reigate
Registered office: 20 Fenchurch Street, London EC3M 3AZ Registered in England number 2430992
Markel (UK) Limited is an Appointed Representative of Markel International Insurance Company Limited who are authorised by the Prudential Regulatory Authority and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and the Prudential Regulatory Authority.
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